

### Minutes

# Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee

Date: Tuesday, January 26, 2016

- Place: Anderson Room Richmond City Hall
- Present:

Councillor Harold Steves, Chair Councillor Ken Johnston Councillor Carol Day (entered at 4:03 p.m.) Councillor Bill McNulty Councillor Linda McPhail

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

## MINUTES

It was moved and seconded That the minutes of the meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee held on November 24, 2015, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

## NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE

February 23, 2016, (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in the Anderson Room

## DELEGATIONS

(1) With the aid of a PowerPoint presentation (copy on file, City Clerk's Office) and referencing speaking notes (attached to and forming part of these minutes as Schedule 1) Linda Barnes and Marina Szijarto, representing the Richmond Arts Coalition (RAC), briefed Committee on the Richmond Arts Coalition Strategic Plan.

*Cllr. Day entered the meeting (4:03 p.m.).* 

### Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee Tuesday, January 26, 2016

Discussion ensued with respect to (i) the need for local art spaces, (ii) utilizing non-traditional spaces, such as restaurants for art space, and (iii) the economic benefits of the arts.

As a result of the discussion, staff were encouraged to seek comment from the Richmond Arts Coalition on matters related to future proposed City public art projects and that information on the Richmond Arts Coalition be posted on the City website.

Discussion then ensued with regard to the proposed Phoenix Net Loft Artists' Market on the B.C. Packer site.

In reply to queries from Committee, Ms. Barnes noted that (i) the RAC is working with staff on opportunities for art space in the city, (ii) the RAC is doing outreach to encourage an increase in membership, and (iii) the RAC would express interest to be involved in proposed City arts projects such as the Phoenix Net Loft Artists' Market.

As a result of the discussion, the following referral was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

- (1) That the Richmond Arts Coalition Strategic Plan be referred to staff for information; and
- (2) That the report titled, Phoenix Net Loft Artists' Market, from Mark Glavina and Associates, be forwarded to the Richmond Arts Coalition.

#### CARRIED

- (2) Dr. Kent Mullinix, Kwantlen Polytechnic University (KPU), spoke on the Southwest British Columbia Bioregional Food Study conducted by KPU, highlighting the following:
  - the project is seeking support from municipalities in the region;
  - the project focuses on Southwestern British Columbia and aims to explore the food self-reliance potential in region;
  - information gathered from the project can be utilized by municipalities, the farming community and entrepreneurs;
  - approximately \$700,000 has been raised towards the project to complement contribution from universities; and
  - the project is seeking endorsement and a staff liaison from the City.

In reply to queries from Committee, Dr. Mullinix, noted that (i) results from the project would be used in future sustainability programs, (ii) the project is in the final stages and results from the study will be released in the upcoming months, and (iii) the project is fully funded, however additional contribution would enhance the research.

### Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee Tuesday, January 26, 2016

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) historical food self-sufficiency capabilities in the city, (ii) the regional food production system, (iii) future food production, and (iv) how individuals and small scale farmers can utilize the information gathered from the study.

In reply to queries from Committee, Dr. Mullinix noted that (i) KPU's Farm School program provides information for small scale farmers, (ii) the project has engaged with the Provincial Health Unit, and (iii) the Agricultural Advisory Committee has endorsed the project.

Discussion then ensued regarding the amount of land left unfarmed in the city and the farming history of Richmond.

As a result of the discussion, the following **motion** was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

- (1) That the Southwest British Columbia Bioregion Food System Design Project be endorsed; and
- (2) That a staff liaison be assigned for the Project.

CARRIED

### COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

### 2. STOREYS PUBLIC ARTWORK CONCEPT PROPOSAL

(File Ref. No. 11-7000-09-20-183) (REDMS No. 4783628 v. 5)

It was moved and seconded

That the concept proposal and installation for the Storeys integrated public artwork by artist Richard Tetrault, as presented in the report titled "Storeys Public Artwork Concept Proposal," from the Director, Arts, Culture and Heritage Services, dated January 6, 2016, be endorsed.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion ensued with respect to the dimensions of the art project.

In reply to queries from Committee, Eric Fiss, Public Art Planner, noted that the art piece will be approximately 80 feet long and will not visually obscure the building signage.

The question on the motion was then called and it was CARRIED.

#### 3. MANAGER'S REPORT

#### (i) Garden City Lands Update

### Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee Tuesday, January 26, 2016

Mike Redpath, Senior Manager, Parks, provided an update to the Garden City Lands (GCL), noting that (i) the design and construction of the trail and water management infrastructure will take place in phases, (ii) approximately five to ten acres will be allocated to KPU for farm use, (iii) the City is the process of developing the GCL's farm management strategy, and (iv) the communication strategy will engage the community and stakeholders.

In reply to queries from Committee, Jamie Esko, Manager, Park Planning and Design, noted that staff are anticipating that the water resource management strategy for the GCL will be completed in February 2016 and once the hydrology study is completed, more information can be provided to the community and stakeholders.

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) consultation of KPU and other stakeholders on the project, (ii) restoring the GCL site as one parcel, and (iii) the timeline for farming on the GCL.

In reply to queries from Committee, Mr. Redpath advised that staff are in close contact with KPU and that KPU is currently working on funding strategies. He added that KPU is preparing the farm management plan and that he anticipates that the water and ecological management strategy will be completed by June 2016.

Discussion then ensued with respect to (i) the hydrological condition of the GCL, (ii) the phases of consultation and development, (iii) farming portions of the GCL prior to completion of the trail network, and (iv) consulting local farmers on the project.

In reply to queries from Committee, Mr. Redpath noted that the City works closely with KPU and consults with the Agricultural Advisory Committee on matters related to the GCL project.

As a result of the discussion, staff were directed to provide an update Committee on the Garden City Lands at every Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee meeting.

#### (ii) Minoru Complex Engagement Plan

Elizabeth Ayers, Manager, Community Services Planning and Projects, updated Committee on the Minoru Complex engagement plan, noting that approximately 400 people attended the engagement sessions and that positive feedback was received.

#### (iii) Relocation of Richmond Gymnastics Association and Richmond Rod and Gun Club

Gregg Wheeler, Manager, Sport and Community Events, briefed Committee on the relocation of the Richmond Gymnastics Association and the Richmond Rod and Gun Club, noting that leases for their current location will expire in February 2016, prior to the availability of the new location at 7400 River Road in 10 to 12 weeks. He added that staff are working with both organizations on facility arrangements.

## ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded *That the meeting adjourn (5:03 p.m.).* 

#### CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee of the Council of the City of Richmond held on Tuesday, January 26, 2016.

Councillor Harold Steves Chair Evangel Biason Legislative Services Coordinator

Schedule 1 to the Minutes of the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee meeting of Richmond City Council held on Tuesday, January 26, 2015.

My name is Linda Barnes 4551 Garry st and I am here as a Director of the Richmond Arts Coalition My partner is Marina Szijarto (see Art O) 10071 Dyke Road, Chair of the Richmond Arts Coalition

We are here today to present our new Strategic Plan of which you have a copy in your packages and we would be pleased to answer any questions or hear any comments you might have at the end of our presentation.

I'm sure you are all aware of the contribution the arts makes to the Cities economic and cultural bottom lines. The Provincial Government's website includes: "The creative sectors are thriving, largely due to the important contributions made by the arts and culture community. The arts educate, inspire and create a quality of life that attracts new residents and investment, creating jobs and supporting the economy."

The Richmond Arts Coalition, founded in 2005 is pleased to count as members the various art specific groups such as Community Arts Council, Textile and Weavers, Potters, Gateway Theatre, individual artists from all disciplines as well as several Council members - McNulty, McPhail and Dang. While Community groups' roles are more in the production and business of Art the Richmond Arts Coalition's role is to be the voice for Art, Arts businesses and Artists in our community: To be a welcoming and inclusive member-driven association that will support and celebrate culture and arts activity in Richmond. As such, over the past 2 years, the Coalition has conducted a space study, hired a consultant for best practice research for innovative solutions for gallery space, performing and practice space and programming. We recognize space, particularly here in Richmond is at a premium and the need to look at space differently, utilize temporary spaces and repurpose old spaces is needed. While we encourage the city, developers and business to incorporate Arts Space in new development and districts such as City Centre North where we would support opportunities to acquire new or larger spaces for facilities such as the Art Gallery; we also look to areas such as the city centre town centre to repurpose existing space. With the replacement of the pool, seniors centre and Firehall a tremendous opportunity to begin to meet the needs of the Arts Community presents itself. In our space needs survey - amongst other needs - particularly lacking were small scale multi-use spaces (such as an artists co-operative) as well as performance and gallery opportunities. RAC is ready to work with the city to ensure arts spaces are part of the planning for reusing these and other facilities.

As our renewal for membership attachment states RAC works in conjunction with City staff on numerous events. In 2015 the Richmond Arts Coalition created an exciting new project called, ArtRich 2015 - a multi faceted visual and multi media exhibition created in partnership with the Richmond Art Gallery. The exhibition was very successful and drew not only many artists together of different visual disciplines but also appealed to a large viewing audience. Since 2011 the Richmond Arts Coalition has provided the Maritime festival with \$207,000 for performers resulting in a growing, vibrant fun event as well as an award from Georgia Straight for the best run community festival. One of our directors Debbie Tobin, coordinates the Richmond Children's Arts Festival coming up soon - why she can't be with us today - bringing in

funding, local and regional artists as well as recognition for the city. In 2015 the Richmond Arts Coalition created an exciting new project called, ArtRich 2015 - a multi faceted visual and multi media exhibition created in partnership with the Richmond Art Gallery. The exhibition was very successful and drew not only many artists together of different visual disciplines but also appealed to a large viewing audience.

Moving our Strategic Plan forward quickly RAC, which is a small volunteer run board, has just hired our first ever Administrative Assistant to help with our website and membership administration and work plan - Andrew Wade. Each week we feature one of our members on our website and social media pages. In addition we post an online calendar of what's on in Richmond' to our website and also provide a listing of all arts and culture events to the local Richmond paper so much of their listings have come via our hard working volunteers. In 2014 we officially partnered with the Community Foundation and are looking for opportunities to grow the endowment fund created – with the long term goal of being able to provide cash prizes for the Richmond Arts Awards. Our plan is bold, ambitious but needed to ensure Richmond takes its place as a truly great city. "Without art, a city is no more a community than a heap of lumber is a home".

I'd like to end with a quote from Paul Schafer from The Arts and Cities "Here is also the contribution the arts make to the economies of cities. They do so through their ability to generate billions of dollars of investment and expenditure on facilities, equipment, hotels, restaurants, tickets, clothing, transportation, tourism and the like. Nor is this all. The arts attract business, industry, and a skilled Labour force.... Many corporations and industries will not locate in cities that are devoid of stimulating aesthetic encounters and memorable artistic experiences."

We welcome questions, comments and follow up meetings with Council members or staff. Thank you.